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Administrative Civil Liability and Mandatory Penalty, Complaint No. 01-020A

Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District


CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

SAN FRANCISCO BAY REGION

COMPLAINT NO. 01-020A

ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY

AND MANDATORY PENALTY

IN THE MATTER OF

SONOMA VALLEY COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT

SONOMA COUNTY

This Complaint to assess Administrative Civil Liability and Mandatory Minimum Penalties pursuant to Water Code section 13385 (c), (e), (h) and/or (i) is issued to Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District (hereafter Discharger) based on a finding of violations of Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. 98-111 (NPDES No. CA0037800).  The period covered by this Complaint is January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000.  Effluent violations in this Complaint are subject to mandatory minimum penalties under Section 13385 (h) and (i) of the California Water Code.  All violations of Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. 98-111 are also subject to discretionary penalties under Section 13385 (c) and (e) of the California Water Code
. 

The Executive Officer finds the following:

1. On October 21, 1998, the Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco Bay Region, (Regional Board) adopted Waste Discharge Requirements (Order No. 98-111), for Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District (Discharger), to regulate discharges of waste from the District’s wastewater treatment facility.

2. The Discharger owns and operates a treatment plant near the town of Sonoma, in Sonoma County, which treats domestic, commercial and industrial wastewater from the greater Sonoma area with a population of approximately 35,000.  In 1995, the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors transferred operating authority of the treatment plant from the Sonoma County Public Works Department to the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA), which operates the plant at issue and several smaller treatment plants regulated by the North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, as well as providing drinking water to several communities in Sonoma and Marin counties.  

3. The Discharger filed a petition with the State Board to review Order 98-111 on November 16, 1998.  On February 2, 2000, the State Board dismissed the petitions of both the Discharger and environmental groups, who also petitioned.  The Discharger is currently challenging the permit in court on the basis that the permit limits for mercury, copper, dieldrin, lindane, tributyltin, cyanide, and PAHs create an undue burden on the Discharger.  Despite the fact that the discharger has contested these limits in court, they legally remain in effect.  It should be noted that the Discharger has been in full compliance with these contested limits since October 1998.  This enforcement action is brought against a number of conventional pollutant limits and zinc limits, which are not subject to the pending legal challenge. This enforcement action is also brought without regard to the pending legal challenge.

4. The treatment plant has an average dry weather flow permitted capacity of 3.0 million gallons per day (mgd) and can treat up to 12.0 mgd during the peak wet weather flow periods.  Discharge is prohibited in the dry season months from May through October.  During the wet season an average of 4.85 mgd is treated and discharged to Schell Slough, a tributary to San Pablo Bay.  Peak flows higher than 12.0 mgd are bypassed to the 35 million gallon equalization basins for later treatment and discharge. For the period covered by this Complaint (January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000), discharge to Schell Slough ceased between and May 19, 2000 and November 1, 2000. 

5. The treatment plant has no primary treatment, and preliminary treatment at the headworks consists of screening.  The plant’s aerated grit chamber with conventional removal and separation equipment failed in March 2000.  Until new grit removal equipment is installed under the Discharger’s current headworks and grit chamber capital improvement project, which is scheduled to go on-line in late July 2001, grit will continue to be removed via the aeration basins.  The extended aeration activated sludge process, followed by sedimentation, disinfection, and dechlorination, provides secondary treatment. The Discharger undertook improvements to the treatment plant to increase its wet weather capacity beginning in 1997.  These improvements included completion of a new chlorine contact tank, increased aeration in the extended aeration tanks and construction of two new circular secondary clarifiers.  The first of these clarifiers went on-line in November 1999 and the second in October 2000.  The first clarifier was then taken off-line at that time to determine if the corrosion control anodes at the bottom of the first clarifier were contributing to the zinc exceedances, which are one of the bases for this ACL.  In mid-January 2001, an automatic shut-valve was installed to shut off discharge to the Slough and divert to equalization basins when chlorine residuals are detected or a power failure occurs.

Citations from Discharger’s NPDES permit

6. Waste Discharge Requirements Order No. 98-111 states, in part:



“A.
DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS
…


2.
The bypass or overflow of untreated or partially treated wastewater to waters of the State, either at the treatment plant or from the collection system or pump stations tributary to the treatment plant, is prohibited except as allowed by Standard Provision A.12.

…

B.
EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS
1.
The term "effluent" in the following limitations means the fully treated wastewater effluent from the Discharger's wastewater treatment facility, as discharged to the Schell Slough. The effluent discharged to the Schell Slough during the wet weather period shall not exceed the following limits:


Conventional Pollutants Effluent Limitations

	Constituent
	Units
	Monthly Average
	Weekly Average
	Daily Maximum
	Instantaneous Maximum

	Chlorine Residual1
	mg/L
	--
	--
	--
	0.0


1  Requirement defined as below the limit of detection in standard test methods defined in the 18th edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater.  

2.
The pH of the discharge shall not exceed 8.5 nor be less than 6.5.

3.
Coliform Bacteria:  The treated wastewater, at some point in the treatment process prior to discharge, shall meet the following limits of bacteriological quality:

a. The moving median value for the MPN of total coliform bacteria in any seven consecutive samples shall not exceed 23 MPN/100 mL; and

b. Any single sample shall not exceed 240 MPN/100 mL.

….

5.
Acute Toxicity:  Representative samples of the effluent shall meet the following limits for acute toxicity: (see Provisions of this Order for more information)



The survival of organisms in undiluted effluent shall be an eleven (11) sample median value of not less than 90 percent survival, and an eleven (11) sample 90 percentile value of not less than 70 percent survival. The eleven sample median and 90th percentile effluent limitations are defined as follows:

11 sample median: Any bioassay test showing survival of 90 percent or greater is not a violation of this limit.  A bioassay test showing survival of less than 90 percent represents a violation of this effluent limit, if five or more of the past ten or less bioassay tests show less than 90 percent survival.



90th percentile: A bioassay test showing survival of less than 70 percent represents a violation of this effluent limit if one or more of the past ten or less bioassay tests show less than 70 percent survival.

….

7.a.
Toxic Substances Effluent Limitations:  The discharge of effluent containing constituents in excess of the following limitations is prohibited [a]:

	Constituent
	Units
	Daily Average [b]
	Monthly Average [b]

	Zinc [d]
	(g/L
	58
	


Footnotes (apply to both 7.a. and 7.b.):

a.
All analyses shall be performed using current USEPA Methods, as specified in USEPA Water/Wastewater Methods (EPA‑600 Series), except that mercury analyses may be performed using USEPA Method 1631.  Metal limits are expressed as total recoverable metals.

b.
Limits apply to the average concentration of all samples collected during the averaging period (Daily ‑ 24-hour period; Monthly ‑ Calendar month).

d.
Effluent limitation may be met as a 4-day average. If compliance is to be determined based on a 4-day average, then concentrations of four 24-hour composite samples shall be reported, as well as the average of four.”

ALLEGATIONS AND CONSIDERATION OF FACTORS

Administrative Civil Liability and Mandatory Minimum Penalty

7. California Water Code Section 13385 requires the Board to impose Mandatory Minimum Penalties (MMPs) and authorizes the Regional Board to assess an Administrative Civil Liability.  A copy of the statute is attached as Attachment A.

8. Effluent violations identified from January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000 are subject to mandatory penalties under Water Code Section 13385 (h), and (i) and, at the Board’s discretion, penalties under Water Code Section 13385 (c) and (e).  If the Board imposes the penalties over and above MMPs, these penalties are referred to as an Administrative Civil Liability (ACL).  In the event that the Board assesses an ACL, the penalty must be assessed at a level that recovers any economic benefits from the violations.

9. Section 13385(e) of the California Water Code requires the Board to consider several factors when determining the amount of the ACL penalty.  These include the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations, and, with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, degree of culpability, prior history of violations, economic benefit or savings, and other factors justice may require.  At a minimum, the ACL must recover any economic benefit for violations that occurred after January 1, 2000.  These factors are discussed below.

1. ACL – Nature of the Violations 

10. The effluent limitation violations covered by this Complaint are listed in Table 1.  During the seven months of discharge in 2000 (January through May 18 and November through December), there were fifteen (15) zinc daily limit violations, seven (7) chlorine residual, three (3) daily maximum coliform, two (2) moving median coliform, two (2) pH violations, and one (1) acute toxicity violation.  Since Regional Board staff recommend that the Board impose administrative civil liabilities on the violations that occurred between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000, staff considered the factors in Water Code section 13385 (e) and assessed the economic benefit for these violations. The Discharger failed to comply with Order No. 98-111 during the seven months of discharge between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000 by exceeding the above limitations by the reported values in Table 1 on the corresponding dates.

TABLE 1.  Violations between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000.

	
	Violation Date
	Effluent Limit
	Parameter
	Permit limit
	Reported Value
	Statute 13385*

	1
	1-Jan-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	0.1 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	2
	10-Jan-00
	B.7.a.
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	70 μg/L
	(h)(1)&(i)(2)

	3
	15-Jan-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	0.1 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	4
	20-Jan-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	0.1 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	5
	24-Jan-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	0.1 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	6
	26-Jan-00
	B.3.b.
	Coliform (d max) 
	Sing smpl Max 240 MPN
	1600 MPN
	(i)(2)

	7
	31-Jan-00
	B.2.
	pH
	Minimum 6.5
	6.4
	(i)(2)

	8
	1-Feb-00
	B.2.
	pH
	Minimum 6.5
	5.9
	(i)(2)

	9
	4-Feb-00
	B.5.
	Acute Toxicity
	Min 70% survival
	55%
	(i)(2)

	10
	7-Feb-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	140 μg/L
	(i)(1)

	11
	13-Feb-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	1.5 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	12
	16-Feb-00
	B.3.a.
	Coliform (med)
	7-d med 23 MPN
	27 MPN
	(i)(2)

	13
	17-Feb-00
	B.3.a.
	Coliform (med)
	7-d med 23 MPN
	27 MPN
	(i)(2)

	14
	13-Mar-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	78 μg/L
	(i)(1)

	15
	2-Apr-00
	B.3.b.
	Coliform (d max)
	Sing smpl Max 240 MPN
	1600 MPN
	(i)(2)

	16
	3-Apr-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	63 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	17
	10-Apr-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	61 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	18
	17-Apr-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	91 μg/L
	(i)(1)

	19
	1-May-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	71 μg/L
	(i)(1)

	20
	8-May-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	63 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	21
	14-May-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	0.11 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	22
	15-May-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	63 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	23
	6-Nov-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	110 μg/L
	(h)(1)&(i)(2)

	24
	7-Nov-00
	B.3.b.
	Coliform (d max)
	Sing smpl Max 240 MPN
	1600 MPN
	(i)(2)

	25
	13-Nov-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	67 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	26
	20-Nov-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	76 μg/L
	(i)(1)

	27
	27-Nov-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	67 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	28
	4-Dec-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	62 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	29
	5-Dec-00
	B.1.
	Chlorine Residual
	Inst max 0.0 mg/L
	13 mg/L
	(i)(2)

	30
	11-Dec-00
	B.7.a
	Zinc
	Daily avg 58 μg/L
	64 μg/L
	(i)(2)

	Volumes released = 123 million gallons



*Water Code section 13385 (h)(1) refers to the first serious violation
 in 6-month period, (i)(1) refers to second and subsequent serious violations, and (i)(2) refers to chronic violations as defined therein.

11. The Discharger also failed to comply with the Discharge Prohibitions in Order No. 98-111 during the months between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000 by exceeding the Discharge Prohibition A.2.  These violations constitute exceedances of the Discharger’s permit. The Discharger violated this Discharge Prohibition on 4 days during the months between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000 by discharging untreated wastewater on the following dates and by the corresponding amounts:

Table 2. Sewer System Overflows in 2000

	Date
	Gallons of overflow

	February 13/14, 2000
	264,000

	May 30, 2000
	6,000

	December 12, 2000
	1,200

	TOTAL gallons
	271,200 gallons


2.  ACL – Circumstances, Extent, and Gravity of the Violations

12. The above tables provide dates on which the violations occurred and the extent of the violations (exceedance concentrations).  The Discharger has not been able to determine the source of the zinc violations.  However, as discussed in the staff report, “Staff Analysis and Recommendations”, dated April 16, 2001, which was prepared in support of this Complaint, one plausible conclusion, based on the Discharger’s influent as compared to other treatment plant influents, is that the Discharger’s pollution prevention/source reduction and pretreatment programs have not been managed adequately or have not been implemented aggressively enough.  The zinc anodes at the bottom of the new secondary clarifier may also be a contributing factor.  This problem predates the time period covered in this Complaint.  The Discharger began to exceed their zinc limit in November 1999. However, beginning in May 1999, the Discharger’s influent concentrations are clearly higher than other similar treatment plant’s influent (See Figure 3 in Staff Analysis and Recommendations).  The chlorine residual and pH violations were due to operator error related to dosing problems of the sulfur dioxide dechlorination system. While the chlorine residual violations were due to under-dosing of the dechlorinating agent, sulfur dioxide, the pH violations were due to over-dosing of sulfur dioxide.  For further discussion of the circumstances by which the above violations occurred, see the staff report.

3.  ACL – Water Quality and Public Health Effects of the Violations

13. The water quality and public health effects of the effluent limit violations listed in the tables above are of concern because of the shallow water nature of the discharge point.  The receiving waters at the dead-end tidal Schell Slough have limited dilution capability even in winter.  This type of limited-dilution discharge situation is the most detrimental to the aquatic environment.  The Discharger’s permit, Order No. 98-111, grants a seasonally-restricted discharge to the shallow water, dead-end tidal Schell Slough.  This exemption from the Basin Plan’s shallow-water discharge prohibition was granted because the Discharger had previously demonstrated that an acceptable source control plan was in place.  Continued exemption from this prohibition may be reconsidered if violations of this frequency and magnitude continue to occur.  

14. High concentrations of zinc can be acutely toxic to aquatic organisms.  The effluent limit in the permit is based on the water quality objective in the Basin Plan for zinc, 58 μg/L. The Discharger’s highest concentration of zinc during 2000 was 140 μg/L and the average for the year was 78 μg/L.    

15. The acutely toxic effects of chlorine residual and low pH to aquatic organisms have also been well established.  Coliform bacteria are used as indicator species for pathogens (disease causing organisms) in the effluent.  Pathogens are harmful to humans as well as fish and wildlife. Sewer overflows can cause exceedances of water quality objectives, particularly for pathogens, oxygen-demanding pollutants, suspended and settleable solids, nutrients, toxics, and floatable matter.  The beneficial uses that are adversely impacted by sewer overflows are shell-fish harvesting, water contact recreation, and non-contact water recreation.  There are potential public health impacts due to public contact with contaminated water in the areas where sewer overflows occurred.

4.  ACL – History of Previous Violations and Enforcement

16. On November 14, 1997 this Board issued an Administrative Civil Liability (ACL) Complaint (Complaint No. 97-126) to the Discharger for 262 violations of effluent limitations and 62 incidents of overflows from the collection system between January 1994 and July 1997.  The largest percentages of effluent limit violations for this period were for coliform (31%) and settleable solids (24%) exceedances.  On February 6, 1998, the discharger waived an amended ACL, with two supplemental environmental projects in lieu of $75,000 of the $83,000 penalty.

17. On February 9, 1999 the Board sent a Notice of Violation (NOV) to the Discharger for effluent limit violations (pH and coliform) and for sewer system overflows that totaled to 25,800 gallons.  

18. On April 29, 1999 this Board sent a Notice of Violation (NOV) to the Discharger for sewer system overflows during four days in February 1999 that totaled to 355,680 gallons.

19.  On June 9, 2000 the Board sent a Notice of Violation (NOV) to the Discharger for violations of zinc, chlorine residual and coliform bacteria effluent limitations that occurred between January 1, 2000 and April 30, 2000.

5.  ACL – Degree of Culpability 

20. The Discharger has been given numerous warnings about their large number of violations both before and during the time period covered by this Complaint. As stated above, the Regional Board has sent several Notices of Violation in addition to a fairly recent ACL (February 1998) regarding the Discharger’s repeated violations.  In a letter dated July 14, 2000 responding to the most recent Notice of Violation, the Discharger attempted to reduce the relevance of the violations and place the culpability on (1) the lower effluent limit that the Discharger received with the reissued permit in 1998, and (2) the increased monitoring performed by the Discharger.  However, this increased monitoring is required of dischargers when violations occur; lower frequency of monitoring is allowed when full and consistent compliance is readily demonstrated.  Also, the lower limit established in their reissued permit was based on the 1995 Basin Plan, which other shallow-water dischargers are required to, and generally do, meet.  Of the 16 zinc violations reported by all dischargers in the region during the 6 months between January 1, 2000 and June 30, 2000, 13 were from the Discharger’s plant.  The Discharger’s influent zinc concentrations indicate the problem is, at least partially, due to source water or commercial entities in the service area.  Other possible causes of the zinc violations are operational procedures (e.g., cleaning tanks and sending wash water to headworks) or the sacrificial anodes on the new clarifier, which became operational in November 1999.

6.  ACL – Other Factors that Justice May Require

21. The treatment plant has been within 92% to 98% of its permitted dry weather capacity for the last several years.  Increased flows from an increasing number of hook-ups in the community exacerbate the problems with capacity at both the plant and within the collection system.  It is typical for dischargers to begin planning for an increase in permitted dry weather capacity when the flows reach 75% capacity to allow time to perform the necessary Anti-degradation Analysis needed to grant a capacity increase. While the Discharger has increased wet weather capacity, there are no near-term plans to perform the Anti-degradation Analysis of the beneficial use impacts from increased effluent. At the same time, the Discharger has not indicated how they intend to limit the number of hook-ups to the collection system from their growing community in order to stay within their permitted dry weather capacity.  

PROPOSED CIVIL LIABILITY

Mandatory Minimum Penalties

22. According to monitoring reports submitted and certified by the Discharger, the Discharger’s effluent caused seven (7) serious violations during the seven months of discharge between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000.  On January 10, February 7, March 13, April 17, May 1, November 6, and November 20, 2000, the Discharger exceeded Effluent Limitation B.7.a, zinc, by more than 20% over the daily average limit of 58 μg/L with reported values of 70, 140, 78, 91, 71, 110, and 76 μg/L, respectively.  The zinc violations on January 10, 2000 and November 6, 2000 constitute the first serious violations within a six-month period.  There were two “first” serious violations, as defined under Section 13385(h)(1), in the time period of this Complaint.  Those serious violations occurred on January 10, 2000 and November 6, 2000.  Pursuant to Sections 13385(h)(1) and 13385(i)(1), the amount of the mandatory penalty for the above serious violations is $21,000 or, in lieu of the $6,000 of the penalty for the two first serious violations for each six-month period, the discharger may spend an equal amount for a supplemental environmental project or to develop a pollution prevention plan.

23. According to monitoring reports submitted by the Discharger, the Discharger committed twenty-three (23) chronic violations by exceeding Effluent Limitation B.1, chlorine residual, seven (7) times; Effluent Limitation B.2, pH, two (2) times; Effluent Limitation B.3, total coliform, five (5) times; Effluent Limitation B.5, acute toxicity, one (1) time; and Effluent Limitation B.7.a, zinc daily average by less than 20% over the limit, eight (8) times during the six-months of discharge between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2000.  Penalties are assessed for the fourth and subsequent violations except for serious violations, pursuant to Section 13385(i)(2).  Two of the chronic violations in the first six-month period are not finable under Section 13385(i)(2).  Since the first serious violation on January 10, 2000 occurred prior to the first three chronic violations, this serious violation is also the first non-finable chronic violation under Water Code Section 13385 (although it is finable as a serious violation).  Similarly, in the second six-month period between May and November, the zinc violation on November 6, 2000 occurred prior to the first three chronic violations during that period; thus, this serious violation is also the third non-finable chronic violation for the second six-month period under Water Code Section 13385 (see Table 2 below).  Since the second six-month period overlaps with the first six-month period, all of the chronic violations in this period require a $3,000 fine.  Therefore, only two of the 23 chronic are removed from requiring fines and the amount of the mandatory penalty for twenty-one (21) chronic violations is $63,000.

24. The Table below lists the violations, the dates they occurred, the volumes released, the type of violation (i.e., serious or chronic), and the mandatory minimum penalty for that violation.

Table 3.   Sonoma VCSD Violations from January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000
	
	Parameter
	Date
	Volume Released (MG)
	Violation Type*
	Mandatory fine*

	1
	Chlorine Residual
	1/1/00
	0.03
	1st Chronic 
	

	2
	Zinc (d avg)
	1/10/00
	3.066
	2nd Chronic  + Serious 
	**$3,000

	3
	Chlorine Residual
	1/15/00
	0.03
	3rd Chronic
	

	4
	Chlorine Residual
	1/20/00
	0.04
	Chronic
	$3,000

	5
	Chlorine Residual
	1/24/00
	0.1
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	6
	Coliform (d max)
	1/26/00
	 6.695
	Chronic
	$3,000

	7
	pH (min)
	1/31/00
	5.056
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	8
	pH (min) (bioassay)
	2/1/00
	
	Chronic   
	$3,000

	9
	Acute Toxicity (5 day)
	2/4/00
	22.578
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	10
	Zinc (d avg)
	2/7/00
	4.213
	Serious 
	$3,000

	11
	Chlorine Residual
	2/13/00
	.117
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	12
	Coliform (median)
	2/16/00
	11.43
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	13
	Coliform (median)
	2/17/00
	11.19
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	14
	Zinc (d avg)
	3/13/00
	5.423
	Serious 
	$3,000

	15
	Coliform (d max)
	4/2/00
	3.743
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	16
	Zinc (d avg)
	4/3/00
	3.011
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	17
	Zinc (d avg)
	4/10/00
	3.449
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	18
	Zinc (d avg)
	4/17/00
	7.658
	Serious 
	$3,000

	19
	Zinc (d avg)
	5/1/00
	3.295
	Serious 
	$3,000

	20
	Zinc (d avg)
	5/8/00
	3.858
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	21
	Chlorine Residual
	5/14/00
	.02
	Chronic (1/1-6/30) + 1st  Chronic (5/11-11/6)  
	$3,000

	22
	Zinc (d avg)
	5/15/00
	4.604
	Chronic (1/1-6/30) + 2nd  Chronic (5/12-11/7) 
	$3,000

	23
	Zinc (d avg)
	11/6/00
	3.864
	Serious + 3rd Chronic 
	**$3,000

	24
	Coliform (d max)
	11/7/00
	3.62
	Chronic
	$3,000

	25
	Zinc (d avg)
	11/13/00
	3.933
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	26
	Zinc (d avg)
	11/20/00
	3.162
	Serious 
	$3,000

	27
	Zinc (d avg)
	11/27/00
	3.319
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	28
	Zinc (d avg)
	12/4/00
	3.111
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	29
	Chlorine Residual
	12/5/00
	--
	Chronic 
	$3,000

	30
	Zinc (d avg)
	12/11/00
	3.133
	Chronic (<20%) 
	$3,000

	Total # violations= 30
	Total volumes released = 123 million gallons
	$84,000


*Mandatory minimum penalties for chronic and serious violations are defined under Water Code Section 13385 (h) and (i).

**Fines may be suspended if the discharger proposes and implements an acceptable supplemental environmental project or pollution prevention plan.

25. The total amount of the mandatory minimum penalty is $84,000 for the period from January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000.

ACL – Economic Benefit 

26. As noted above, the Board is authorized to impose an ACL in addition to the MMPs.  If the Board assesses an ACL, the Board is required to recover any assessed economic benefit gained by the Discharger from postponing measures that may have prevented the violations.  (See Economic Savings section in the Staff Analysis and Recommendations for a more detailed discussion.)  The economic benefit assessed, $146,500, was derived from the following five factors:

i. Postponement of a source reduction program for zinc, which should have been implemented beginning in October 1994 when the Discharger’s effluent zinc concentration was as high as 170 μg/L, but at least by no later than the permit reissuance date, October 21,1998, ($13,100)
.  Postponement resulted in continued zinc violations. 

ii. Postponement of a treatment plant optimization program that began in October 2000, but should have been initiated and updated annually since January 1995 when the Sonoma County Water Agency became the operating authority for the plant, or at least as of their last ACL in February 1998 ($1,400)
.  Postponement resulted in decreased efficiency and increasing number of conventional and toxic pollutant violations. 

iii. Postponement of an inflow and infiltration reduction study and capital improvement project for the Discharger’s collection system, which should have begun February 1998, when the Discharger received an ACL partly for its collection system overflows, but instead began in June 1999 in response to the Regional Board’s April 29, 1999 Notice of Violation and request for report pursuant to Section 13267 ($47,400)
.  Postponement resulted in continued sewer system overflows.

iv. Postponement of repairing and installing new headworks and grit removal chamber as of March 14, 2000, when the old grit removal chamber failed ($62,200)
.  Postponement may have contributed to zinc violations by requiring aeration basins to perform removal of grit.  Also, Board was not notified before removing a component in treatment process.

v. Postponement of automatic chlorination and dechlorination equipment ($22,400)
, which would reduce the number of chlorine, pH and coliform violations.

Regional Board staff determined that the above actions should have been taken to attain compliance or avoid violations.  Using USEPA’s Benefits Model (BEN), staff determined the interest earned by delaying compliance with these actions as the amount of the economic benefit.  The total economic benefit gained by the District is $146,500. The total economic benefit is compared to the mandatory minimum penalty and the greater of the two is the non-discretionary portion of the assessed penalty.

ACL – Maximum Potential Civil Liability on All Violations

27. The potential maximum amount of administrative civil liability for each day of violation is ten thousand dollars ($10,000) plus ten dollars ($10) times the number of gallons by which the volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 gallons.

If this matter is referred to the Attorney General, a maximum liability of $25,000 per day and $25 per gallon may be imposed.

ACL – Staff Costs

28. The Board incurred staff costs in order to prepare this Complaint and supporting information. Regional Board staff time to investigate the violations and prepare the Complaint and Staff Report totaled 140 hours, at an average cost to the State of $100 per hour.  Thus, the total staff cost for this enforcement action is $14,000.

Proposed Penalty

29. Since the Mandatory Minimum Penalty, $84,000, is less than the total assessed economic benefit, $146,500, the proposed penalty in this ACL is based on the non-discretionary total economic benefit described above, plus staff costs.  This ACL does not include additional discretionary penalties that consider the required factors.  Table 5 below itemizes the economic benefits from each factor and shows the comparison of total MMP with total assessed economic benefit.

Table 5.  Itemized Recommended Penalties 

	Penalty Category
	 Summation
	Assessed Fine

	MMP (non-discretionary)
	$ 84,000
	

	ACL – Economic Benefit (non-discretionary)
	
	

	      (a) Source Reduction
	$ 13,100
	

	      (b) Plant Optimization
	$ 1,400
	

	      (c) Collection System (SSOs) (discretionary)
	$47,400
	

	      (d) Headworks and Grit Removal
	  $62,200
	

	      (e) Automated chlorine/dechlorination
	$22,400
	

	    Total Economic Benefit
	$146,500
	$146,500

	Staff Costs
	
	$ 14,000

	Total Penalty
	
	$ 160,500


30. The Executive Officer of the Regional Board proposes that an Administrative Civil Liability be imposed by the Regional Board under Section 13385 of the Water Code in the amount of $160,500.  This amount is the sum of $146,500 in economic benefit, and staff costs of $14,000.

ACL – Ability to Pay

31. The Discharger’s ability to pay the proposed ACL is based on the Discharger’s 2000-01 Fiscal Year Budget, expenditures and revenues.  Gross revenues for the facility during 2000 were approximately $6 million.  The proposed penalty, $160,500, is approximately 3% of the Discharger’s gross revenues for the plant.  Based on this information, the Discharger should be able to pay this amount without significant impact on its ability to conduct its responsibilities.

32. Issuance of this Complaint is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000, et seq.), in accordance with Section 15321(a)(2), Title 14, California Code of Regulations.

SONOMA VALLEY COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT IS HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT:

1. The Executive Officer of the Regional Board proposes that the Discharger be assessed Administrative Civil Liability in the amount of 160,500 dollars ($160,500) that includes 146,500 dollars ($146,500) in economic benefit and 14,000 dollars ($14,000) in staff costs.

2. The Discharger has signed the waiver, thus waiving the right to a hearing, paid $92,000 to the State Water Resources Control Board on June 20, 2001, and proposed a supplemental environmental project (SEP) in the amount of $68,500.  The SEP, which is described in Attachment B of this Complaint, is acceptable to the Executive Officer.  A detailed proposal of the project shall be submitted to the Executive Officer for approval by August 15, 2001.

3. Board staff recommends that $68,500 be suspended pending completion of the proposed supplemental environmental project (SEP).  The proposed project, Historical Hydrology and Ecology of Lower Non-tidal Sonoma Valley, shall include quarterly progress reports.  The final report on the SEP shall be submitted to the Board within 60 days of project completion.  The SEP must be completed by September 1, 2002.  Any money not used by that date must be submitted to the Regional Board and made payable to the State Cleanup and Abatement Account or directed toward an alternative project acceptable to the Executive Officer.

________________________________

Loretta K. Barsamian, Executive Officer

_________________

Date 

Attachments:  

Attachment A – Citation from Water Code Section 13385 

Attachment B – Project Proposal: Historical Hydrology and Ecology of Lower Non-tidal Sonoma Valley. 

WAIVER

(
Waiver of the right to a hearing and agree to make payment in full.
By checking the box I agree to waive my right to a hearing before the Regional Board with regard to the violations alleged in Complaint No. 01-020A.  I understand that I am giving up my right to be heard, and to argue against the allegations made by the Executive Officer in this Complaint, and against the imposition of or the amount of, civil liability proposed.  I further agree to remit payment for the civil liability imposed within thirty (30) days after the waiver is signed.

(
 Waiver of the right to a hearing and agree to propose a PPP or SEP.
By checking the box I agree to waive my right to a hearing before the Regional Board with regard to the violations alleged in Complaint No. 01-020A and to propose and complete an Executive Officer-approved supplemental environmental project (SEP) for the amount of liability suspended of no more than $68,500 in lieu of a portion of the administrative civil liability (total minus non-SEP allowed portion of MMP ($78,000) and staff costs ($14,000)).   I have remitted payment of the remainder of the total ($92,000) to the State Cleanup and Abatement Fund account including $14,000 in staff costs. If the pollution prevention plan or supplemental environmental project is not acceptable to the Executive Officer, I agree to pay the suspended payment of no more than $68,500 within 30 days of a letter from the Executive Officer denying approval of the proposed project. I understand that I am giving up my right to argue against the allegations made by the Executive Officer in this Complaint, and against the imposition of, or the amount of, the civil liability proposed.  I further agree to complete a pollution prevention plan or conduct a supplemental environmental project approved by the Executive Officer within a time schedule set by the Executive Officer.

______________




_______________

Name (print)





Signature

______________




_______________


Date






Title/Organization


� The Board is required to impose, at least, Mandatory Minimum Penalties (MMP) if it finds that certain violations occurred. In addition, the Board is authorized but not required to impose additional penalties for the same violations.  If the Board imposes the additional penalties in the form of an Administrative Liability (ACL), the Board is required, under Section 13385 of the Water Code, to, at a minimum, recover the economic benefit amount, if any, or the MMP amount, whichever is greater.


� Serious violation refers to any waste discharge that exceeds the effluent limitations by 20 percent or more for Group II pollutants (toxic pollutants) or by 40 percent or more for a Group I pollutants (conventional pollutants), as specified in Appendix A to Section 123.45 of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations.


� Economic Benefit for postponement of pollution prevention program, $13,100, was derived from one-time non-depreciable cost of $34,000 and annually recurring costs of $8,000 between January 1, 2000 and May 25, 2001. 


� Economic Benefit for postponement of an optimization program, $1,400, was derived from one-time non-depreciable cost of $30,000 between January 1, 2000 and May 25, 2001. 


� Economic Benefit for postponement of a collection system improvement plan, $47,400, was derived from one time capital investment of $473,100 [$8,100,000 (extrapolated from example city, Benicia) minus $3,369,000 spent in 1995/1996; sum divided by ten, for 10 years over which sum is allowed to be spent]. Dates for non-compliance and compliance were January 1, 2000 and May 1, 2001, respectively, for 2000 year economic benefit results and January 1, 2001 and May 25, 2001, respectively, for 2001 results. 


� Economic Benefit for postponement of installing a new headworks and grit removal chamber, $62,200, was derived from capital investment costs provided by the Discharger for installing a new grit removal system ($953,000).  Dates for non-compliance and compliance are March 14, 2000 and May 25, 2001.


� Economic Benefit for postponement of installing automatic dosing systems for chlorine and sulfur dioxide, $22,400, was derived from capital investment costs estimated for the equipment and installation ($290,000). Dates for non-compliance and compliance were January 1, 2000 and May 25, 2001, respectively.  





The energy challenge facing California is real.  Every Californian needs to take immediate action to reduce energy consumption.  For a list of simple ways you can reduce demand and cut your energy costs, see our Web-site at http://www.swrcb.ca.gov.
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